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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Bartholomew County Courthouse is the only surviving example of the French 
Second Empire style in the county. It was designed "by noted Indiana architect 
Isaac Kodgson of Indianapolis and completed in 18?^.

The building is an ell-shaped mall, with the intersection of its legs at the 
northeast corner of Washington and Third Street . The extreme ends of the wings 
extend behind to the south and west; the apis thus formed on the south-west contains 
a grandstaircase. The bays at the ends of the wings are projected to form corner 
pavilions, as are those at the intersection of the wings, which form the base of the 
clocktower. All elements are crowned by steeply inclined mansard roofs; those of the 
corner pavilions and tower additionally have roof curbs exaggerated into mod^llionated 
cornices with panelled friezework and elaborate roof cresting.

The red pressed brick walls are trimmed in white limestone and stand on a plinth 
and watertable of smooth rusticated blue limestone. This polychrome effect is 'used 
to emphasize openings .and horizontals, since the lines of the sills, span4rerls, f sash, 
and arch imposts are continued as ashlar coursing set flush with the face'brick and 
continuous over openings. The same device is used to emphasize vertical lines on the 
corner pavilions and the slightly projecting central bay of the east elevation, each 
of which have smooth rusticated quoins and central window bays enframed by pilasters 
and variously capped with pediments or round arches with panelled' spandrels. On the 
main (east) elevation, the entrance is within an arcade of segmental arches let into 
the recess formed by the corner pavilions; the arches and the Corinthian columns 
from which they directly spring, as well as the open balustrade above, are all 
constructed of limestone. The slightly projecting central bay behind this arcade 
extends above the principal cornice line and is capped with a broken pediment flanked 
by finials. The central window of the bay is enframed by pilasters and volute 
buttresses and surmounted by a commemorative inscription whose segmental cap-mould 
breaks the pediment.

On the north elevation, a centrally placed entrance is beneath a distyle 
Corinthian portico whose design echoes the arcade on the east facade. Directly above 
the portico is a round-arched window bay whose panelled surround marches 'that of the 
central bay of the east facade. . .,,..-.. ; ,

The clocktower is the other principal feature'of'tlie exterior; it extends"three 
stories above the cornice line. The elevations of the fourth and fifth floor levels 
are composed of a central elongated window bay, with a panelled apron, narrow side­ 
lights separated from the bay by the enframing pilasters, and a round arch at the 
top with panelled spandrel and flanking oculi. On the sixth level each facade has 
five arcaded, louvred openings for the belfry, and is surmounted by a broad 
Corinthian entablature. Above this there is a broad curb at the base of the 
vertically elongated mansard. The clockfaces above are iron framings with white 
glass infill; they are mounted directly onto the roofing, with^aecorative surrounds. '

The appearance of the roofline has been altered substantially. In 1953 "the 
original slate roof was replaced with the present standing-seam copper; at that time fc 
dormers and cresting were also removed. The wrought iron cresting has since been 
reproduced with an alloy facsimile.
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The Bartholomew County Courthouse is significant because of its rare Second 
fempire design, and "b'ecause of its architect, Isaac Hodgson.

Few Second, Empire style courthouses were built in Indiana; still fewer survive. 
Of these the Bartholomew County Courthouse is the most elaborate, despite the loss 
of some of its roofline features. Designed in 18?1 by architect, Isaac Hodgson, 
the building was three years in construction, and was dedicated 1 in December, 18?^. 
One speaker at the dedication praised the building in this way:

"This elegant and comodious structure affords undoubted evidence of the
wealth, energy and public spirit; of the people of Bartholomew County....
The erection of this building is an evidence of the growth and prosperity
of the county and the gigantic strides it has taken for the advancement of
intelligence and culture.*

There is no building in Bartholomew County that can in any way equal the scale 
and sophistication of this Second Empire style courthouse. On a state level, no 
other Second Empire county courthouse can compare favorably with this structure.

The architect, Isaac Hodgson, was born in Ireland and came to America in 1848. 
By 1855 he was practicing architecture in Indianapolis. Hodgson secured many 
governmental contracts, «ies<'£hin£ no less than five courthouses in Indiana, includiig 
the Marion County Courthouse in Indianapolis, razed in 1962. Hodgson 1 s plans for 
the Bartholomew County Courthouse were drawn in 18?1, the year of the Chicago fire. 
The construction of the Courthouse utilizes steel and iron framing throughout, and 
is said to have been one of the first fireproof buildings in Indiana. Hodgson was 
one of the nine charter members of the Indiana Chapter of the American Institute of 
Architects.

Since its completion in 1874, the structure has served as the center for politica 
and governmental activities in Bartholomew County.
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